

# Collective Bargaining Agreement Between AFSCME Council 65, Local 0568-0002, AFL-CIO And Becker County Highway 1/1/2022 - 12/31/2022

<u>Labor Representative</u>: Ginger Thrasher (<u>GThrasher@afscme65.org</u> or 320-640-0145)

AFSCME Council 65 Office: info@afscme65.org or 888-474-3242

#### **WEINGARTEN RIGHTS**

If called to a meeting with management, you have rights to representation. State the following and call your labor representative: If this discussion could in any way lead to my being disciplined or terminated, or affect my personal working conditions, I respectfully request that my union representative be present at the meeting. Until my representative arrives, I choose not to participate in this discussion.

## **BECOME AN AFSCME 65 MEMBER**

Are you a new employee or not a member yet? Scan the QR code to sign up today and take advantage of the many benefits of AFSCME membership!









# **MEMBER BENEFITS**

Are you taking advantage of your union member benefits? Check out the many benefits available from AFSCME Advantage and Union Plus at:

www.afscme.org/member-resources

www.unionplus.org

Make sure to have your member number handy when accessing these benefits.

# **ORGANIZING**

Know someone who wants to form a union at their workplace? Contact our Organizing Department at 888-474-3242 or email <a href="mailto:info@afscme65.org">info@afscme65.org</a> and inquire about forming a union. Make sure they tell us you referred them. Your Local benefits from referring new union members.



## **LABOR AGREEMENT**

### Between

LOCAL 568, COUNCIL 65

AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE, COUNTY

AND MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES

**AFL-CIO** 

And

COUNTY OF BECKER

DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS

JANUARY 1, 2022 DECEMBER 31, 2022

#### Table of Contents

Article I Purpose of Agreement
Article II Recognition
Article III Definitions
Article IV Employer Security
Article V Union Security
Article VI Employer Authority3
Article VII Grievance Procedure
Article VIII Savings Clause
Article IX Seniority6
Article X Discipline
Article XI Overtime
Article XII Discrimination 8
Article XIII Call Back
Article XIV Insurance 9
Article XV Work Schedules
Article XVI Vacations
Article XVII Holidays
Article XVIII Personal Leave Day
Article XIX Legal Defense
Article XX Job Posting
Article XXI Promotions
Article XXII Probationary Period
Article XXIII Sick Leave

Article XXIV Maternity/Adoption Leave
Article XXV Leaves of Absence
Article XXVI Right of Subcontract
Article XXVII Safety14
Article XXVIII Longevity14
Article XXIX Severance Pay14
Article XXX Waiver
Article XXXI Constitutional Protection
Article XXXII Bulletin Board
Article XXXIII Wages
Article XXXIV Mileage
Article XXXV Personal Items Broken or Lost
Article XXXVI Duration 16

#### LABOR AGREEMENT

#### Between

LOCAL 568, COUNCIL 65

# AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE, COUNTY AND MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES

**AFL-CIO** 

And

# COUNTY OF BECKER DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS

#### ARTICLE I PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement is entered into between the County of Becker, hereinafter called the Employer, and the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, Local 568, Council 65, hereinafter called the Union. It is the intent and purpose of this Agreement to:

- 1.1 Establish procedures for the resolution of disputes concerning this Agreement's interpretation and/or application; and
- 1.2 Place in written form the parties complete agreement upon terms and conditions of employment for the duration of this Agreement;
- 1.3 Prevent interruptions of work or interference with the efficient operation of the Employer;
- 1.4 Retain in the Employer all matters of inherent managerial policy, including the right to take actions necessary to implement the public policy goals entrusted to it by law in an efficient manner.

#### ARTICLE II RECOGNITION

2.1 The Employer recognizes the Union as the exclusive representative under Minnesota Statutes Section 179A.03, subd. 8, for all employees in the Highway Department of the County of Becker, Minnesota, whose employment service exceeds the lesser of 14 hours per week or 35 percent of the normal work week and more than 67 work days per year, excluding supervisory and confidential employees and all employees of the Employer not employed in the Highway Department.

#### ARTICLE III DEFINITIONS

- 3.1 <u>Union:</u> Local 568, Council 65, American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO.
- 3.2 <u>Union Member: A member of Local No. 568, Council 65, American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO.</u>
- 3.3 Employee: A member of the exclusively recognized bargaining unit.
- 3.4 <u>Employer:</u> The County of Becker.
- 3.5 Department: The Becker County Department of Highways.
- 3.6 <u>Base Pay Rate:</u> The employee's hourly pay rate exclusive of longevity or any other special allowances.
- 3.7 <u>Seniority:</u> Length of continuous service with the Employer.
- 3.8 <u>Compensatory Time:</u> Time off the employee's regularly scheduled work schedule equal in time to one and one-half times overtime worked.
- 3.9 Overtime: Work performed at the express authorization of the Employer in excess of either eight (8) hours within a twenty-four (24) hour period (except for shift changes) or more than forty (40) hours within a seven (7) day period.
- 3.10 <u>Severance Pay:</u> Payment made to an employee upon honorable termination of employment.
- 3.11 <u>Call Back:</u> Return of an employee to a specified work site to perform assigned duties at the express authorization of the Employer at a time other than an assigned shift. An extension of or early report to an assigned shift is not a call back.
- 3.12 <u>Strike</u>: Concerted action in failing to report for duty, the willful absence from one's position, the stoppage of work, slowdown, or abstinence in whole or in part from the full, faithful and proper performance of the duties of employment for the purposes of inducing, influencing or coercing a change in the conditions or compensation or the rights, privileges or obligation of employment.
- 3.13 Regular Employees: A member of the exclusively recognized bargaining unit defined in this Agreement who has completed the required probationary period for newly hired or rehired employees.

#### ARTICLE IV EMPLOYER SECURITY

The Union agrees that during the life of this Agreement, neither the Union nor any of the employees covered by the Agreement will cause, encourage, participate in or support any strike, slowdown or other interruption of or interference with the normal functions of the Employer.

#### ARTICLE V UNION SECURITY

In recognition of the Union as the exclusive representative, the Employer shall:

- 5.1 The Employer shall deduct an amount each month sufficient to provide the payment of regular dues, established by the Union from the wages of all employees authorizing, in writing, such deduction on a form mutually agreed upon by the Employer and Union; and the deduction of dues shall commence 30 working days after initial employment with the Employer, and
- 5.2 The Employer shall remit such deductions to AFSCME Council 65 Administrative Office (118 Central Avenue, Nashwauk, MN 55769) with a list of the names of the employees from whose wages deductions were made along with other employee information mutually agreed upon by the Employer and Union necessary for the collection and administration of union dues preferably in an Excel or text file formatted report that may be electronically transmitted or by U.S. mail; and
- 5.3 The Union shall provide the formula or schedule (if applicable) to calculate the actual dues deduction to the Employer and will provide a spreadsheet that can be used to calculate the actual dues along with any set amount for local assessments, in an electronic format preferably excel or via U.S. mail.
- 5.4 The Union agrees to indemnify and hold the Employer harmless against any and all claims, suits, orders or judgments including attorney's fees brought or issued against the County as a result of any action taken or not taken by the County under the provisions of this Article.
- 5.5 The Union may designate certain employees from the bargaining unit to act as stewards and shall inform the Employer in writing of such choice.

#### ARTICLE VI EMPLOYER AUTHORITY

6.1 The Employer retains the full and unrestricted right to operate and manage all manpower, facilities and equipment; to establish functions and programs; to set and amend budgets; to determine the utilization of technology; to establish and modify the organizational structure; to select, direct and determine the number of personnel; to establish work schedules; and to perform any inherent managerial function not specifically limited by this Agreement.6.2. Any term and condition of employment not specifically established or modified by this Agreement shall remain solely within the discretion of the Employer to modify, establish or eliminate.

#### ARTICLE VII GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

- 7.1 <u>Definition of a Grievance:</u> A grievance is defined as a dispute or disagreement as to the interpretation or application of the specific terms and conditions of this Agreement.
- 7.2 <u>Union Representatives:</u> The Employer will recognize representatives designated by the Union as the grievance representatives of the bargaining unit having the duties and responsibilities established by this Article. The Union shall notify the Employer in writing of the names of such Union Representatives and of their successors when so designated,

as provided by this Agreement.

- 7.3 Processing of a Grievance: It is recognized and accepted by the Union and the Employer that the processing of grievances as hereinafter provided is limited by the job duties and responsibilities of the employees and shall therefore be accomplished during normal working hours only when consistent with such employee duties and responsibilities. The aggrieved employee and a Union Representative shall be allowed a reasonable amount of time without loss in pay when a grievance is investigated and presented to the Employer during normal working hours provided that the employee and the Union Representative notified and received the approval of the designated supervisor who has determined that such absence is reasonable and would not be detrimental to the work of the Employer.
- 7.4 <u>Procedure:</u> Grievances, as defined in Section 7.1, shall be resolved in conformance with the following procedure:
  - Step 1: An employee claiming a violation concerning the interpretation or application of this Agreement shall, within fourteen (14) calendar days after such alleged violation has occurred, present such grievance to the employee's supervisor as designated by the Employer. The Employer-designated supervisor will discuss and give an answer to such Step 1 grievance within ten (10) calendar days after receipt. A grievance not resolved in Step 1 and appealed to Step 2 shall be placed in writing, setting forth the nature of the grievance, the facts on which it is based, the provision or provisions of the Agreement allegedly violated, the remedy requested, and shall be appealed to Step 2 within ten (10) calendar days after the Employer-designated representative's final answer in Step 1. Any grievance not appealed in writing to Step 2 by the Union within ten (10) calendar days shall be considered waived.
  - Step 2: If appealed, the written grievance shall be presented by the Union and discussed with the Employer-designated representative who shall give the Union the Employer's Step 2 answer in writing within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of such Step 2 grievance. A grievance not resolved in Step 2 may be appealed to Step 3 within ten (10) calendar days following the Employer-designated representative's final Step 2 answer. Any grievance not appealed in writing to Step 3 by the Union within ten (10) calendar days shall be considered waived.
  - Step 3: If appealed, the written grievance shall be presented by the Union and discussed with the Employer-designated Step 3 representative. The Employer-designated representative shall give the Union the Employer's answer in writing within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of such Step 3 grievance. A grievance not resolved in Step 3 may be appealed to Step 4 within ten (10) calendar days following the Employer-designated representative's final Step 3 answer. Any grievance not appealed in writing to Step 4 by the Union within ten (10) calendar days shall be considered waived.
  - Step 4: A grievance unresolved in Step 3 and appealed to Step 4 by the Union shall be submitted to arbitration subject to the provisions of the Public Employment Labor Relations Act of 1971, as amended. Notice of a party's desire to go to arbitration shall be sent by U.S. Mail. The selection of an arbitrator shall be made in accordance with the rules established by the Bureau of Mediation Services. Failure to select an arbitrator within ninety (90) days of receipt of the list of arbitrators from the BMS shall be considered a "waiver" of the grievance

unless the delay in selection is caused by the Employer, or is mutually agreed upon by the parties in writing.

#### 7.5 Arbitrator's Authority:

- a. The arbitrator shall have no right to amend, modify, nullify, ignore, add to or subtract from the terms and conditions of this Agreement. The arbitrator shall consider and decide only the specific issue(s) submitted in writing by the Employer and the Union, and shall have no authority to make a decision on any other issue not so submitted.
- b. The arbitrator shall be without power to make decisions contrary to, or inconsistent with, or modifying or varying in any way the application of laws, rules or regulations having the force and effect of law. The arbitrator's decision shall be submitted in writing within thirty (30) days following close of the hearing or the submission of briefs by the parties, whichever be later, unless the parties agree to an extension. The decision shall be binding on both the Employer and the Union and shall be based solely on the arbitrator's interpretation or application of the express terms of this Agreement and to the facts of the grievance presented.
- c. The fees and expenses for the arbitrator's services and proceedings shall be borne equally by the Employer and the Union, provided that each party shall be responsible for compensating its own representatives and witnesses. If either party desires a verbatim record of the proceedings, it may cause such a record to be made, providing it pays for the record. If both parties desire a verbatim record of the proceedings, the cost shall be shared equally.
- 7.6 <u>Waiver:</u> If a grievance is not presented within the time limits set forth above, it shall be considered "waived". If a grievance is not appealed to the next step within the specified time limit or any agreed extension thereof, it shall be considered settled on the basis of the Employer's last answer. If the Employer does not answer a grievance or an appeal thereof within the specified time limits, the Union may elect to treat the grievance as defined at that step and immediately appeal the grievance to the next step. The time limit in each step may be extended by mutual agreement of the Employer and the Union.
- 7.7 Choice of Remedy: If, as a result of the written Employer response in Step 3, the grievance remains unresolved, and if the grievance involved the suspension, demotion or discharge of an employee who has completed the required probationary period, the grievance may be appealed either to Step 4 of Article VII or a procedure such as Civil Service or Veteran's Preference. If appealed to any procedure other than Step 4 of Article VII, the grievance is not subject to the arbitration procedure as provided in Step 4 of Article VII. The aggrieved employee shall indicate in writing which procedure is to be utilized and shall sign a statement to the effect that the choice of any other hearing precludes the aggrieved employee from making a subsequent appeal through Step 4 of Article VII.

#### ARTICLE VIII SAVINGS CLAUSE

This Agreement is subject to the laws of the United States, the State of Minnesota and the County of Becker. In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be held to be contrary to law by a

court of competent jurisdiction from whose final judgment or decree not appeal has been taken within the time provided, such provisions shall be voided. All other provisions of this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect. The voided provision may be renegotiated by mutual agreement of both parties.

#### ARTICLE IX SENIORITY

- 9. 1 There shall be three types of seniority established by the Agreement:
  - a. Service seniority, which shall be the total length of continuous service with the Employer.
  - b. Department seniority, which shall be the total length of service within a specific department of the Employer.
  - c. Classification seniority, which shall be the total length of service within a work classification.
- 9.2 Except in those instances where senior employees are not qualified to perform remaining work, seniority shall determine the order of:
  - a. Layoff shall be by classification within a department, in inverse order of classification seniority. However, an employee about to be laid off shall have the right to bump (displace) any employee with less seniority in a previously held equal or lower classification, provided that the Employer determines the employee who is exercising bumping rights to be adequately qualified to perform the duties of the classification into which he/she is bumping and he/she has greater department seniority than the employee who is to be bumped. Employees shall be notified of the layoff a minimum of ten working days in advance.
  - b. Recall from layoff, which shall be by classification within a department, in inverse order of layoff, provided that if an employee does not return to work upon recall as directed by the Employer or on an extended date mutually acceptable to the employee and the Employer, he/she shall automatically have terminated his/her employment. An employee's name shall be retained on the recall list for one (1) year, at which time all rights to recall shall terminate.
- 9.3 Where all other qualifications are equal, seniority shall apply to employees in accordance with the employee's length of continuous service.
- 9.4 New employees hired shall be considered as probationary employees for the first six (6) months of their employment. When an employee finishes the probationary period, he/she shall be a regular employee within the meaning of this Agreement.
- 9.5 The Employer shall maintain a seniority list, which shall show the name and job title of all employees entitled to seniority. Such list shall be kept up to date, and Employer will provide the Union with a copy thereof annually.
- 9.6 An employee shall lose seniority for the following reasons only:

- a. Resignation
- b. Discharge
- c. Absence of five (5) consecutive working days without notifying Employer; in proper cases exceptions may be made in the sole discretion of the Employer. After such absence, the Employer will send written notification to the employee at the last known address that seniority is lost and that the employee's employment has been terminated.
- 9.7 Any vacancy or newly created position will be posted on the employee bulletin board at least seven (7) days prior to filling the position.
  - a. Whenever possible, openings shall be filled by present employees, giving first consideration to qualifications for the job.
  - b. If it becomes necessary in making a promotion to bypass an employee's seniority, written reasons for such bypass shall be given to the employee and to the Union Steward. Such bypass shall then be a proper matter for grievance procedure.
  - c. An employee who is promoted within the divisions of Maintenance, Engineering or Office/Support shall be granted a thirty (30) day trial period to determine his/her desire to remain on the job. During such thirty (30) day period, the employee shall have the opportunity to revert back to his/her former position. If the promoted employee is unsatisfactory in his/her new position, notice thereof and reasons therefore shall be submitted to the employee and the Union Steward in writing. The matter may then become a proper subject for grievance procedure. During the trial period, the employee shall receive the rate of pay of the job he/she is performing.

#### ARTICLE X DISCIPLINE

- 10.1 The Employer will discipline employees for just cause only. Discipline will be in one or more of the following forms:
  - a. Oral reprimand
  - b. Written reprimand
  - c. Suspension
  - d. Demotion; or
  - e. Discharge
- 10.2 Suspensions, demotions and discharges will be in written form.
- 10.3 Written reprimands, notices of suspension and notices of discharge which are to become part of an employee's personnel file shall be read and acknowledged by signature of the employee. The employees will receive a copy of such reprimands and/or notices.
- 10.4 Employees may examine their own individual personnel files at reasonable times

- under the direct supervision of the Employer.
- 10.5 Employees will not be questioned concerning an investigation of disciplinary action unless the employee has been given an opportunity to have a Union representative present at such questioning.
- 10.6 Grievances relating to demotion, suspension and discharge shall be initiated by the Union in Step 3 at the grievance procedure under Article VII.

#### ARTICLE XI OVERTIME

- 11.1 Hours worked in excess of eight (8) hours within a twenty-four (24) hour period (except for shift changes) or more than forty (40) hours within a seven (7) day period will be compensated for at one and one-half (1-1/2) times the employee's base pay rate plus longevity. Part-time Employee. Hours worked on Saturday in excess of eight (8) hours (except for shift changes) will be compensated at one and one-half (1Y2) times the employee's base pay rate plus longevity.
- 11.2 Overtime will be distributed as equally as possible.
- 11.3 Overtime refused by employees will, for record purposes under Article 11.2, be considered as unpaid overtime worked.
- 11.4 For the purpose of computing overtime compensation, overtime hours worked shall not be pyramided, compounded or paid twice for the same hours worked.
- Overtime shall be divided as equally as possible and practical among employees in the same classification. An up-to-date list showing overtime hours will be posted by the Employer monthly.
- 11.6 Work performed on a holiday, as defined in Article XVII, or on a Sunday, shall be paid for at time and a half rate for all hours worked plus the holiday pay.
- 11.7 Overtime compensation for non-exempt employees shall be made either in cash or compensatory time off, at the employee's option. Employees shall elect to take either cash or compensatory time at the end of each pay period. No employee shall accumulate more than one hundred twenty (120) hours in the compensatory time bank; hours earned in excess of one hundred twenty (120) shall be paid in cash at the appropriate rate. For the employees in the Engineering division, all accumulated compensatory time in excess of forty (40) hours not used by the pay period eliding which includes May 3 P' shall be paid in cash at the appropriate rate. For the employees in the Maintenance and Office/Support divisions all accumulated compensatory time in excess of forty (40) hours not used by the pay period ending which includes November 30 shall be paid in cash at the appropriate rate. At the discretion of the County Administrator, compensatory time in excess of 120 hours may be accumulated based on unusual circumstance.

#### ARTICLE XII DISCRIMINATION

Neither the Union nor the Employer will discriminate against any employee because of Union membership or non-membership, nor because of race, creed, sex, color, religious belief or political belief. Employees shall be subject to the Sexual Discrimination Policy as referenced in the County

Personnel Policy.

#### ARTICLE XIII CALLBACK TIME

An employee called in for work at a time other than his/her normal scheduled shift will be compensated for a minimum of two (2) hours pay at one and one-half (1-1/2) times the employee's base pay rate plus longevity. An extension or early report for a regularly scheduled shift of duty does not qualify the employee for the two (2) hour minimum.

A part-time employee called in for work at a time other than his/her normal scheduled shift on Monday through Friday shall not be eligible for a minimum of two (2) hours pay at one and one-half ( $1^1A$ ) times the employee's base rate plus longevity. A part-time employee called into work on a Saturday shall receive a minimum of two (2) hours pay at one and one- half ( $1^1/2$ ) times the employee's base pay rate plus longevity, with any additional hours worked on Saturday compensated at the employee's base pay rate plus longevity.

#### ARTICLE XIV INSURANCE

14.1 The Employer shall establish a Flexible Benefits Plan. Each employee participating in the Plan must purchase the minimum required coverage - individual comprehensive major medical coverage, long term disability and basic life insurance under the plan. Effective 1/1/18, the PEIP's HSA deductible plan shall be the minimum required health plan.

Effective 1/1/2018 the County contribution will remain the same as of 2017. Effective 1/1//2019. The County contribution will be based on a 50/50 split between the Employer and employee based on the single HSA compatible plan. Therefore, the County contribution will be calculated by taking fifty percent (50%) of the single HSA plan premium increase and adding it to the previous year's contribution. Employees may receive in cash or use for optional benefits the remaining dollars after the minimum required benefits are deducted from the County's contribution, including those employees who elect to waive the single required health plan.

After enrollment, if any plan falls to ten (10) or less County employees, the plan goes away for the next open enrollment. (Newly implemented plans will be given two (2) years to exist prior to dropping if there are ten (10) or less enrolled.)

- 14.2 On retirement and after fifteen (15) years of employment with Becker County or under Minnesota Statute 471.61, subd. 2b, the employee will have the option to continue with the County's hospital and medical insurance coverage at his/her own expense. This coverage will continue until the employee is age 65 or if married and under the family policy, until age 65 of either the employee or spouse, whichever reaches age 65 last. The monthly premiums would be due by the fifteenth (15'11) of the preceding month.
- 14.3 The parties agree to meet and confer regarding any changes in this Article necessary to comply with and/or avoid penalties under the Affordable Care Act.

#### ARTICLE XV WORK SCHEDULES

- 15.1 The sole authority in work schedules is the Employer. The normal work day for an employee shall be eight (8) hours. The normal work week shall be forty (40) hours.
- 15.2 Service to the public may require the establishment of regular shifts for some employees on

- a daily, weekly, seasonal, or annual basis, other than a normal work day. The Employer will give advance notice to the employees affected by the establishment of work days different from the employee's normal eight (8) hour work day.
- 15.3 In the event that work is required because of unusual circumstances such as (but not limited to) fire, flood, snow, sleet, or breakdown of municipal equipment or facilities, no advance notice need be given. It is not required that an employee working other than the normal work day be scheduled to work more than eight (8) hours; however, each employee has an obligation to work overtime or call backs if requested unless unusual circumstances prevent the employee from so working. 15.4 Service to the public may require the establishment of work weeks that include work weeks that include work on Saturdays and/or Sundays.
- 15.5 All overtime work must be authorized in advance, except for acts of disaster, by the Employer. For the purpose of computing overtime, holidays and approved leaves shall be considered as days worked.
- 15.6 All employees shall receive one (1) fifteen (15) minute rest period in each four (4) hour work period at times designated by their immediate supervisor. Noon lunch periods shall be thirty (30) minutes.
- 15.7 When an employee reports for work in accordance with the schedule without having been previously notified not to report, he/she shall receive a minimum of two (2) hours work or two (2) hours pay in lieu thereof.

#### ARTICLE XVI VACATIONS

16.1 Permanent employees shall be granted vacation leave in accordance with the following schedule:

Years of Service	Vacation Days Granted
Beginning 0 through 1 year	10 days
Beginning 2 through 6 years	12 days
Beginning 7 through 11 years	15 days
Beginning 12 through 18 years	20 days
Beginning 19 plus years	24 days

- 16.2 Vacation leave may be accumulated to a maximum of 224 hours on the last day of each calendar year. Any vacation leave accumulated in excess of 224 hours will be lost to the employee. Vacation shall be earned based on the bi-weekly payroll system
- 16.3 All vacation leaves shall be scheduled with the Employer. Leaves of one week or more shall be scheduled at least two weeks in advance.
- 16.4 No two employees in the same work category will be authorized for vacation leave at the same time, except with the authorization by the Employer. Preference will be given the employee with the earliest scheduling.

#### ARTICLE XVII HOLIDAYS

The following ten (10) days have been designated as official paid holidays:

New Years Day President's Day Memorial Day Independence Day Labor Day Columbus Day Veteran's Day Thanksgiving Day Christmas Day Martin Luther King Day

Juneteenth will become a holiday upon it becoming a state holiday.

17.1 In order to receive pay for a holiday, an employee must work his regularly scheduled work day the days immediately before and immediately after the holiday, unless on approved leave.

#### ARTICLE XVIII PERSONAL LEAVE DAY

Each employee shall be entitled to 16 hours per calendar year of personal leave. These personal leave hours must be taken by the employee or they will be lost.

#### ARTICLE XIX LEGAL DEFENSE

- 19.1 Employees involved in litigation because of negligence, ignorance of laws, nonobservation of laws, or as a result of employee judgmental decision may not receive legal defense by the Employer.
- 19.2 Any employee who is charged with a traffic violation, ordinance violation or criminal offense arising from acts performed within the scope of his employment, when such act is performed in good faith and under direct order of his supervisor, shall be reimbursed for reasonable attorney's fees and Court costs actually incurred by such employee in defending against such charge.

#### ARTICLE XX JOB POSTING

- 20.1 The Employer and the Union agree that permanent job vacancies within the designated bargaining unit shall be filled based on the concept of promotion from within, provided that applicants:
  - 20.1(a) Have the necessary qualifications to meet the standards of the job vacancy; and
  - 20.1(b) Have the ability to perform the duties and responsibilities of the job vacancy.
- 20.2 Employees filling a position in a different job division, such as Maintenance to Engineering shall be subject to the conditions of Article XXII, Trial Period.
- 20.3 The Employer has the right of final decision in the selection of employees to fill posted jobs based on qualifications, abilities and experience.20.4 Job vacancies within the designated bargaining unit will be posted for seven (7) working days so that members of the bargaining unit can be considered for such vacancies.

Seniority will be the determining criterion for transfers, promotions and layoffs only when all other qualifications are equal.

#### ARTICLE XXI PROMOTIONS

Seniority will be the determining criterion for transfers, promotions and layoffs only when all other qualifications are equal.

#### ARTICLE XXII PROBATIONARY PERIODS/TRIAL PERIOD

- 22.1 All newly hired or rehired employees will serve a six (6) months probationary period, The employer may extend the probationary period an additional six months upon written notification to the union stating the reason for extension. Probationary employees shall accrue vacation and sick leave from date of hire but may not use or receive vacation unless the employee satisfactorily completes the probation period.
- 22.2 All employees will serve a six (6) months probationary period in any job division (Maintenance, Engineering or Office Support) in which the employee has not served a probationary period.
- At any time during the probationary period, a newly hired or rehired employee may be terminated at the sole discretion of the Employer.
- At any time during the trial period, a promoted or reassigned employee may be demoted or reassigned to the employee's previous position at the sole discretion of the Employer.

#### ARTICLE XXIII SICK LEAVE

- 23.1 All regular employees shall be entitled to one (1) day sick leave per month and shall accumulate sick leave to a maximum of 960 hours. After the maximum 960 hours have been accrued, the time shall go into a sick leave bank only to be used when all of the 960 hours have been exhausted. A doctor's certificate may be required for sick leave absences of more than three (3) days duration, or if sick leave is used on more than three separate occasions during the year.
  - Sick leave shall be earned based on the bi-weekly payroll system.
- 23.2 Earned sick leave may be used for absences from work necessitated by the following circumstances:
  - a. Because of sickness or injury to an employee which renders the employee unable to perform the duties of employment;
  - b. Because of quarantine directed by a medical physician;
  - c. Because of death in the immediate family, immediate family is defined as follows: employee's spouse, children, stepchildren, grandchildren or legal wards, parents, step parents, father/mother-in-law, grandparents, aunts and uncles, brother, sister, brother/sister-in-law, and step siblings; up to an additional sixteen (16) hours of sick leave may be granted with the approval of the department head. Such use not to exceed twenty-four (24) hours. Eight (8) hours of sick leave may be used for death of cousins, and domestic partners.

- d. Because of sickness or injury to an employee's spouse, children or parents, or as referenced in MN Statute 181.9413 result of which requires the said employee to attend to their needs; and
- e. Because of doctors visits required by employee, employee's spouse, parents, children or stepchildren.
- 23.3 If an employee receives a job related injury or sickness and if eligible for Worker's Compensation benefits, the Employer agrees to pay said employee an amount equal to the difference between the amount received from Worker's Compensation and his/her regular salary, not to exceed his/her regular take home pay, for a period not to exceed sixty (60) days. Beyond sixty (60) days, the difference will be charged to the employee's Sick leave account providing the employee chooses to receive his full salary. Once the employee's sick leave account has been used in full, the employee will not continue to accumulate any sick leave, paid holiday or vacation during the period that said employee is unable to work and continuing to receive Worker's Compensation benefits. Upon receipt by the Employer of a medical report indicating that the employee's healing period has concluded and if the employee is unable to return to the position that he held at the time he was injured, and there are no other job classifications open, the employee may be discharged.
- 23.4 Use of the sick leave benefits for reasons other than those stated in Section 23.2 of this Article shall be just cause for disciplinary action as provided in Article X (Discipline).

#### ARTICLE XXIV MATERNITY/ADOPTION LEAVE

An unpaid maternity or adoption leave of absence must be granted to a natural parent or adoptive parent who requests such leave in conjunction with the birth or adoption of child. The leave shall commence on the date requested by the employee and shall continue for up to three (3) months, provided, however, that such leave may be extended up to a maximum of one (1) year by mutual consent of the Employer and the employee. The Employer's policy for unpaid maternity or adoption leave shall be consistently and uniformly applied among employees in similar circumstances.

#### ARTICLE XXV LEAVES OF ABSENCE

- Unpaid leaves of absence for reasonable periods, not to exceed one (1) year, may be granted to an employee without loss of seniority for longevity purposes; illness leave (physical or mental) may be extended upon request for like periods.
- 25.2 Paid leaves of absence shall be granted for service on a jury, with per diem received therefore to be turned back to the County (excluding travel allowance).
- 25.3 Employees who are members of a Reserve Military Force of the United States or the State of Minnesota, and who are ordered by appropriate authorities to attend a training program or perform other duties under the supervision of the appropriate authority shall be granted a paid leave time up to a maximum of 15 working days per calendar year.
- 25.4 Any regular employee who enters into active military service while in the employment of Employer shall be granted a leave of absence for the period of such military service.
- 25.5 Withdrawal of PERA accumulated deductions shall terminate leave of absence, and

shall be a permanent employment severance.

25.6 No leave of absence shall be granted for any reason prior to two (2) years of continuous service to the Employer by the employee.

#### ARTICLE XXVI RIGHT OF SUBCONTRACT

Nothing in this Agreement shall prohibit or restrict the right of the Employer from subcontracting work performed by employees covered by this Agreement.

#### ARTICLE XXVII SAFETY

The Employer and the Union agree to jointly promote safe and healthful working conditions, to cooperate in safety matters and to encourage employees to work in a safe manner. The Employer will contribute the sum of \$250 per year within the contract period toward the purchase of work-related protective footwear, cold weather gear and/or rain gear for those employees whose work requires such footwear and gear. Employee purchases of protective footwear, cold weather gear and/or rain gear are subject to the approval of the Employer.

#### ARTICLE XXVIII LONGEVITY

- 28.1 To recognize the employee who remains in the employment of the Employer, a longevity program is established.
- 28.2 To determine eligibility for longevity, the employee's last date of hire shall be the governing factor.
- 28.1 To recognize the employee who remains in the employment of the Employer, a longevity program is established.
- 28.2 To determine eligibility for longevity, the employee's last date of hire shall be the governing factor.
- 28.3 Employee's hired before April 24, 2018, longevity pay shall be paid as follows:

Years of Service	Percent of Salary Increase
0 through 5 years	0%
6 through 10 years	1%
11 through 15 years	2%
16 through 20 years	3%
21 through 25 years	5%
26 through 30 years	6%
Over 30 years	7%

Employee's hired after April 24, 2018 shall receive, in addition to the regular compensation provided herein, longevity pay which will follow the schedule below: Starting at 16 years 3%

28.4 Longevity payment shall be paid each month and shall be based upon

longevity computed on length of service as of the anniversary month of employment.

#### ARTICLE XXIX SEVERANCE PAY

All employees hired on or after February 25, 2014 will be subject to the following severance Pay:

Years of Service	Percent of Sick Leave
5 yrs	40%
10 yrs	50%
15 yrs	60%
20 yrs	70%

#### ARTICLE XXX WAIVER

- 30.1 Any and all prior agreements, resolutions, practices, policies, rules and regulations regarding terms and conditions of employment, to the extent inconsistent with the provisions of this Agreement, are hereby superseded.
- 30.2 The parties mutually acknowledge that during the negotiations which resulted in this Agreement, each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to any term or condition of employment not removed by law from bargaining. All agreements and understandings arrived at by the parties are set forth in writing in this Agreement for the stipulated duration of this Agreement.
- This Agreement may be amended by the mutual agreement of the Employer and the Union during the life of the Agreement.

#### ARTICLE XXXI CONSTITUTIONAL PROTECTION

Employees shall have the rights granted to all citizens of the United States and Minnesota State Constitutions.

#### ARTICLE XXXII BULLETIN BOARD

- 32.1 The Employer shall maintain in its headquarters a bulletin board, on which shall be posted all notices required by this Agreement.
- 32.2 The posting of notices on the bulletin board shall be deemed as proper notice to the employees of the subject involved.
- 32.3 The Employer agrees to allow the Union to use the bulletin board for the purpose of posting notices of Union meetings, Union elections, Union election returns, Union appointments to office, and union recreational or social affairs. The Union agrees to limit the posting of such notices to its bulletin board space. It is specifically understood that no notices of political or inflammatory nature shall be posted.

#### ARTICLE XXXIII WAGES

- 2022: 3.25% general wage increase. Employees who are who are not at the top of the wage 33.1 schedule shall receive a step increase on their anniversary date.
- 33.2 Pay days will follow the biweekly system based on a four (4) week rotation, and twice a year employees will receive a second paycheck for a pay period of two weeks.
- 33.2 Pay days will follow the biweekly system based on a four (4) week rotation, and twice a year employees will receive a second paycheck for a pay period of two weeks.

#### ARTICLE XXXIV MILEAGE

Employees required to furnish cars for purposes of County business shall be paid at the rate the Internal Revenue Service allows for income tax purposes which is effective at the time the employee's expense is incurred. This is paid only when County cars are not available. In the event that there is an available County car, which the employee elects not to use, the employee shall be paid at the rate established by the County Board of Commissioners.

#### ARTICLE XXXV PERSONAL ITEMS BROKEN OR LOST

Department head shall determine on a case-by-case basis whether to reimburse an employee for personal items broken or lost while working, said reimbursement not to exceed the sum of one items broken through improper use of equipment or supplies.

#### ARTICLE XXXVI DURATION

This Agreement shall be effective as of January 1, 2022 and shall remain in full force and effect until December 31, 2022, and shall be automatically renewed from year to year thereafter unless either party shall notify the other party in writing ninety (90) days prior to the date of termination that it desires to commence negotiations for a succeeding agreement, and this Agreement shall remain in effect during the period of contract negotiations.

AFSCME LOCAL 568, COUNCIL 65

Dated: <u>5/3/22</u>

Dated: 5-5-2022

Union Stew

**AFSCME COUNCIL 65** 

Dated: May 5, 2012

Ginger thrasher 5/5/2012

# Ginger Thrasher

	BECKER COUNTY
Dated:	Larry Knutson Board Chair
Dated:	Pat Oman County Administrator

2022 POSITION	Band	Grade	Step 1	Step 2	Step 3	Step 4	Step 5	Step 6	Step 7	Step 8	Step 9	Step 10
HIGHWAY OFFICE SUPPORT CLERK	B-22	0	38,619	39,905	41,192	42,479	43,766	45,053	46,339	47,626	48,913	50,380
HIGHWAY OFFICE SUPPORT CLERK	B-22	0	18.4955	19.1118	19.7281	20.3443	20.9606	21.5769	22.1931	22.8094	23.4257	24.1285
MAINTENANCE WORKER-PESTICIDE	B-23	2	41,962	43,317	44,672	46,027	47,382	48,738	50,093	51,448	52,803	54,387
MAINTENANCE WORKER-PESTICIDE	B-23	2	20.0965	20.7456	21.3946	22.0437	22.6927	23.3418	23.9909	24.6399	25.2890	26.0476
MAINTENANCE WORKER	B-23	2	41,962	43,317	44,672	46,027	47,382	48,738	50,093	51,448	52,803	54,387
MAINTENANCE WORKER	B-23	2	20.0965	20.7456	21.3946	22.0437	22.6927	23.3418	23.9909	24.6399	25.2890	26.0476
TRANSPORTATION WORKER	B-23	2	41,962	43,317	44,672	46,027	47,382	48,738	50,093	51,448	52,803	54,387
TRANSPORTATION WORKER	B-23	2	20.0965	20.7456	21.3946	22.0437	22.6927	23.3418	23.9909	24.6399	25.2890	26.0476
PAYROLL-ACCOUNTING SPECIALIST	B-24	0	42,283	43,707	45,131	46,554	47,978	49,402	50,826	52,249	53,673	55,283
PAYROLL-ACCOUNTING SPECIALIST	B-24	0	20.2507	20.9325	21.6144	22.2962	22.9780	23.6599	24.3417	25.0236	25.7054	26.4766
TRAFFIC SERVICE WORKER	B-24	2	43,794	45,218	46,641	48,065	49,489	50,912	52,336	53,760	55,183	56,839
TRAFFIC SERVICE WORKER	B-24	2	20.9741	21.6559	22.3378	23.0196	23.7015	24.3833	25.0652	25.7470	26.4288	27.2217
MECHANIC	B-25	2	45,626	47,118	48,611	50,103	51,595	53,087	54,579	56,071	57,563	59,290
MECHANICI	B-25	2	21.8517	22.5663	23.2809	23.9956	24.7102	25.4248	26.1394	26.8541	27.5687	28.3958
CREW CHIEF SURVEY	B-31	2	48,833	50,445	52,057	53,669	55,281	56,893	58,505	60,117	61,728	63,580
CREW CHIEF SURVEY	B-31	2	23.3875	24.1595	24.9315	25.7035	26.4755	27.2475	28.0194	28.7914	29.5634	30.4503
MAINTENANCE CREW FOREMAN	B-31	2	48,833	50,445	52,057	53,669	55,281	56,893	58,505	60,117	61,728	63,580
MAINTENANCE CREW FOREMAN	B-31	2	23.3875	24.1595	24.9315	25.7035	26.4755	27.2475	28.0194	28.7914	29.5634	30.4503
MECHANICII	B-31	2	48,833	50,445	52,057	53,669	55,281	56,893	58,505	60,117	61,728	63,580
MECHANIC II	B-31	2	23.3875	24.1595	24.9315	25.7035	26.4755	27.2475	28.0194	28.7914	29.5634	30.4503
SENIOR ENGINEERING TECHNICIAN	B-31	2	48,833	50,445	52,057	53,669	55,281	56,893	58,505	60,117	61,728	63,580
SENIOR ENGINEERING TECHNICIAN	B-31	2	23.3875	24.1595	24.9315	25.7035	26.4755	27.2475	28.0194	28.7914	29.5634	30.4503
TRANSPORTATION TECHNICIAN	B-32	1	52,659	54,442	56,225	58,008	59,791	61,574	63,357	65,140	66,923	68,931
TRANSPORTATION TECHNICIAN	B-32	1	25.2197	26.0737	26.9276	27.7816	28.6356	29.4895	30.3435	31.1974	32.0514	33.0129
TRAFFIC SERVICE FOREMAN	B-32	2	53,429	55,213	966'95	58,779	60,561	62,344	64,127	65,910	62,693	69,701
TRAFFIC SERVICE FOREMAN	B-32	2	25.5884	26.4429	27.2968	28.1506	29.0045	29.8584	30.7123	31.5662	32.4201	33.3816

2022

#### MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, the AFSCME Council 65 ("Union") represents the Highway Department Employee Unit in Becker County (Employer); and

WHEREAS, the Employer has determined to exercise its managerial right to conduct a wage study prior to the commencement of negotiations for the 2023 collective bargaining agreement;

**NOW, THEREFORE**, the Parties agree as follows: :

- Wage Study: The Employer will engage the services of an outside consultant to 1. conduct a wage study of a representative sample of Becker County job classes and provide the Employer with predicted pay for the remaining union positions based upon band and grade. The study shall be completed by September 2022, absent factors beyond the control of the Employer (force majeure).
- Non-Precedent Setting: This Memorandum of Agreement and the Employer's 2. decision to conduct a wage study shall not constitute a waiver of the Employer's inherent managerial rights, nor shall it constitute an agreement to bargain over wage studies, classification studies, compensation or pay equity studies. This agreement and wage study shall not be cited by any party as evidence in any future negotiations, arbitrations, or litigation regarding the Employer's duty to bargain over wage studies, classification studies, compensation or pay equity studies or any other matter of inherent managerial rights.
- **Mutual Drafting:** This agreement is the result of negotiations between the parties 3. and, accordingly, shall not be construed for or against either party, regardless of which party drafted any the agreement or any portion thereof. The agreement shall for all purposes be deemed to have been mutually drafted.

Dated: 5/5/22

Dated: May 5, 202

Union Business Agent

thrasher 5/5/2012

Dated:	Larry Knutson (
	Becker County Board Chair
Dated:	
	Pat Oman
	Recker County Administrator

RRM: 454039

#### MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, the AFSCME Council 65 ("Union") represents the Highway Department employees unit in Becker County (Employer); and

WHEREAS, the collective bargaining agreements (CBAs) contain language regarding the Employer's contribution in 2017 and 2018, and an Employer-Employee 50/50 split of the increase beginning in 2019 and thereafter;

WHEREAS, the Union and the Employer have reached an agreement for how the increase will be split for 2022 only, pursuant to this Memorandum of Agreement, which shall not alter the terms of the CBAs;

**NOW, THEREFORE**, the Parties agree as follows:

- 1. **CBA Language Unchanged**. The provisions of this Memorandum of Agreement shall commence on January 1, 2022, and shall terminated on December 31, 2022. The existing language in the CBAs (§14.1) shall remain unchanged and shall be effective January 1, 2023, and the Employer contribution amount shall revert to the amount under the § 14.1 calculation for 2023, unless the parties negotiate a change in the language in the CBAs pursuant to the provisions of PELRA, Minnesota Statutes Chapter 179A, for 2023.
- 2. **2022 Health Insurance Increase Split**: For calendar year 2022 only, the Employer shall pay 75% of the increase in the cost of health insurance premiums under the County's Health Insurance Plan. The increase will be calculated based on the single H.S.A. compatible plan premium. The Employer's contribution for 2022 will be calculated by taking 75% of the single H.S.A. compatible plan premium increase and adding it to the 2021 employer contribution. Employees may use any excess over the single premium amount for optional benefits after the premiums are deducted from the County's contribution, including those employees who elect to waive the single required health plan.
- 3. **Mutual Drafting:** This agreement is the result of negotiations between the parties and, accordingly, shall not be construed for or against either party, regardless of which party drafted any the agreement or any portion thereof. The agreement shall for all purposes be deemed to have been mutually drafted.

Dated: <u>6-5-2022</u>	Union Steward
Dated: <u>5/5/22</u>	Union Steward
Dated: May 5, 2022	Ginger Thrasher Union Business Agent
Dated:	Larry Knutson  Becker County Board Chair
Dated:	Pat Oman Becker County Administrator

RRM: 455413